
Commission Meeting AGENDA   *   Monday, July 10, 2023 
Page 1 of 2 

 
4005 Port Chicago Highway, Suite 120, Concord, CA 94520 • 925.771.7300 • fax 925.771.6083 • www.first5coco.org 

 

 

Commission Meeting 
A G E N D A 

Monday, July 10, 2023, 6:00 pm  
First 5 Contra Costa, Fish Bowl Conference Room 

4005 Port Chicago Hwy., Suite 120, Concord CA 94520 
 

The Commission meeting will be accessible in-person and via virtual webinar to all members of the public.  
Persons who wish to address the Commission during public comment or with respect to an item on the agenda may call in during the 
meeting by dialing 669-444-9171 or 669-900-6833 or use the “raise your hand” feature in the Zoom app. The Commission Chair may 

reduce or eliminate the amount of time allotted to read comments at the beginning of each item or public comment period depending 
on the number of comments and the business of the day. Your patience is appreciated. 

Virtual Webinar Information: 
Please click the link below to join the webinar: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82958522265 
Webinar ID: 829 5852 2265 

 
1.0    Convene, call to order, and roll call 

2.0 Public Comment  
The public may comment on any item of public interest within the jurisdiction of the First 5 Contra Costa Children and 
Families Commission. In accordance with the Brown Act, if a member of the public addresses an item not on the posted 
agenda, no response, discussion, or action on the item may occur. 

 
3.0 Approve the Minutes from the June 12, 2023 Commission Meeting                                         Action 

 
4.0 Approval of Consent Calendar         Action 
 A Commissioner or member of the public may ask that any of the following consent items be removed from the consent 

calendar for consideration under Item 4. 
 

4.1 Accept the Minutes from the April 17, 2023 Executive Committee Meeting  

4.2 Approve the Contracts Docket 

4.2.1 APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Executive Director, or her designee, to execute a 
contract with Contra Costa County Office of Education to provide rating and 
management of the Contra Costa Quality Rating and Improvement System (QRIS) in 
accordance with local implementation requirements and in alignment with regional 
and state QRIS efforts, in an amount not to exceed $121,088, for term July 1, 2023 
to June 30, 2024.  FY 2023-24 budget line: Early Childhood Education Initiative:  
Early Learning Quality ($487,032).  Funded 17% ($20,584.96) Prop 10 funds and 
83% ($100,503.04) F5 CA Improve and Maximize Programs So All Children Thrive 
(IMPACT) funds. 

 
4.2.2 APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Executive Director, or her designee, to execute a 

contract with Tandem, Partners in Early Learning to provide a book bag delivery 
system that train parents in read-aloud strategies, in an amount not to exceed 
$160,743, for term July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024.  FY 2023-24 budget line: Early 
Childhood Education Initiative: Early Learning Quality ($487,032).  Funded 100% 
Prop 10 funds. 

http://www.first5coco.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82958522265


Commission Meeting AGENDA   *   Monday, July 10, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 

 
4005 Port Chicago Highway, Suite 120, Concord, CA 94520 • 925.771.7300 • fax 925.771.6083 • www.first5coco.org 

 

 
 
4.2.3 APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Executive Director, or her designee, to execute a 

contract amendment with AAA Business Supplies Limited Partnership to increase 
the payment limit by $5,000 (from $49,000 to $54,000) to oversee the purchase, 
delivery and set up of furniture for 4005 Port Chicago Hwy administration office 
for term to extend from June 30, 2023 to July 31, 2023. FY 2023-24 budget line: 
Professional Services: ($462,500).  Funded 100% Prop 10 funds.   

 
4.2.4 APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Executive Director, or her designee, to execute a 

contract with CocoKids, Inc. to provide Quality Improvement Navigation (QIN) 
coaching, ongoing technical assistance (TA), guidance and communication to QIS 
and QRIS sites, and support in local implementation of the QRIS, in an amount 
not to exceed $102,900, for term July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024.  FY 2023-24 
budget line: Early Childhood Education Initiative: Early Learning Quality 
($487,032) Funded 17% ($17,493) Prop 10 funds and 83% ($85,407) F5 CA 
Improve and Maximize Programs so All Children Thrive (IMPACT) funds.    

 
4.3 Accept the First 5 Contra Costa June 2023 Program Reports 

5.0 Consider for discussion any items removed from the consent calendar.     

6.0 Recognize Lisa Morrell-Korb for 18 years of service as First 5 Contra Costa’s                                  Discussion 
Family Support Program Officer   

 
7.0 Receive Staff Presentation of Family Child Care Partner Program                                                      Discussion 
 
8.0       Receive Staff Presentation of Overview of the State Budget Discussion 

9.0       Executive Director’s Report Discussion 
 
 10.0       Communications  Discussion 

• ECPIC Letter:  Concerns about the Current Proposal to Adjust the Mental Health Services Act 
• Article:  What you need to know on the California budget deal 

 
 11.0       Commissioner F.Y.I Updates  
 
 12.0       Adjourn Discussion 
 
 
 
The First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to participate in 
Commission meetings who contact the Commission’s offices, at least 48 hours before the meeting, at (925) 771-7300. 
 
Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and distributed by the First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families 
Commission to a majority of members of the First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission less than 96 hours prior to that meeting are available for public 
inspection at 4005 Port Chicago Highway, Suite 120, Concord, CA 94520 during normal business hours. 

 
In consideration of those who may suffer from chemical sensitivities or who may have allergic reactions to heavy scents, First 5 Contra Costa requests that staff and 
visitors refrain from wearing perfume, cologne, or the use of strongly scented products in the work place. We thank you for your consideration of others. 

     

 

http://www.first5coco.org/


 

1 
 

Commission Meeting 
MINUTES 

Monday, June 12, 2023, 6:00 pm 
First 5 Contra Costa, Fishbowl Conference Room 

4005 Port Chicago Hwy., Suite 120, Concord CA 94520 
 

1.0 Call to Order and Roll Call 
Chair John Jones called the meeting to order at 6:03 PM. 
Commissioners present during roll call were: 

District 3:  Lee Ross 
District 4:  Alternate Gareth Ashley 
District 5:  Chair John Jones 
Board of Supervisors:  Alternate Supervisor Ken Carlson  
Health Department:  Dr. Ori Tzvieli – participated remotely due to Just Cause 
Health Department:  Alternate Dr. Sefanit Mekuria  
EHSD:  Alternate Nicholas Bryant 
Children & Families Services:  Kathy Marsh 
 

Also, in attendance during roll call were: 
 Stephen Siptroth, Assistant County Counsel 

 

 
Commissioners not present during roll call were: 

District 1:  Dr. Rocio Hernandez  
District 2:  Marilyn Cachola Lucey  
District 2:  Alternate Vidya Iyengar 
District 4:  Matt Regan 
Board of Supervisors:  Supervisor Candace Andersen 
EHSD:  Dr. Marla Stuart  
Children & Families Services:  Alternate Roslyn Gentry  
 

2.0 Public Comment 
No comment from the public.  
 

3.0 Approve the Minutes from the April 17, 2023 Commission Meeting. 

The Chair asked if there were any questions regarding item 3.0.  There were none.  

The Chair asked for a motion to approve the minutes from April 17, 2023. 

Commissioner Lee Ross made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Alternate Gareth Ashley to 
approve the minutes.   
 
Roll call of vote: 
Yes:    District 3:  Lee Ross 

District 4:  Alternate Gareth Ashley 
District 5:  Chair John Jones  



 

2 
 

Board of Supervisors:  Alternate Supervisor Ken Carlson 
Health Services:  Dr. Ori Tzvieli  
EHSD:  Alternate Nicholas Bryant 
Children & Families Services:  Kathy Marsh 

 
Nos: None 

 
ABSTAIN: None 

 
Absent:   District 1:  Dr. Rocio Hernandez 

District 2:  Marily Cachola Lucey 
District 2:  Alternate Vidya Iyengar  
District 4:  Matt Regan  
Board of Supervisors:  Supervisor Candace Andersen  
EHSD:  Dr. Marla Stuart 
Children & Families Services:  Alternate Roslyn Gentry  

 
The motion was APPROVED. 
 
Dr. Rocio Hernandez joined the meeting remotely due to Just Cause. 

 
4.0 Approval of Consent Calendar A Commissioner or member of the public may ask that any of the 

following consent items be removed from the consent calendar for consideration under item 5.0. 

Items 4.2.2 and 4.2.12 were removed by the Chair from the Consent Calendar for consideration in 
Item 5.0 and voting on the remaining items proceeded. 

 
The Chair called for a motion to approve the Consent Calendar with the removal of 4.2.2 and 
4.2.12.  
 
Commissioner Alternate Ken Carlson made a motion to approve the Consent Calendar, 
seconded by Commissioner Kathy Marsh. 
 
Roll call of vote: 
Yes: District 1:  Dr. Rocio Hernandez 
 District 3:  Lee Ross 

District 4:  Alternate Gareth Ashley 
District 5:  Chair John Jones 
Board of Supervisors:  Alternate Ken Carlson  
Health Services:  Dr. Ori Tzvieli  
EHSD:  Alternate Nicholas Bryant 
Children & Families Services:  Kathy Marsh 

 
Nos: None 

 
ABSTAIN: None 



 

3 
 

 
Absent:   District 2:  Marilyn Cachola Lucey 

District 2:  Alternate Vidya Iyengar  
District 4:  Matt Regan  
Board of Supervisors:  Supervisor Candace Andersen  
EHSD:  Dr. Marla Stuart 
Children & Families Services:  Alternate Roslyn Gentry  

 
The motion was APPROVED. 

 
5.0 CONSIDER for discussion any items removed from the Consent Calendar. Before discussing items 

4.2.2 and 4.2.12 the Chair asked for recusal statements to be read.   
   

Dr. Ori Tzvieli made the following statement:  I have an interest in Agenda item #4.2.2 and 4.2.12 
because I am employed by the Contra Costa County Health Department, and this item directly 
impacts my department.  I am recusing myself from these items and will be leaving the room. 
 
Dr. Sefanit Mekuria made the following statement:  I have an interest in Agenda item #4.2.2 and 
4.2.12 because I am employed by the Contra Costa County Health Department, and this item 
directly impacts my department.  I am recusing myself from these items and will be leaving the 
room. 
 
Supervisor Alternate Ken Carlson made the following statement:  I have an interest in Agenda item 
4.2.2 and 4.2.12 because I am a Contra Costa County Supervisor and receive a salary and 
reimbursement for expenses from the County.  However, I am not employed by the County 
Department that is directly involved in the contract with First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families 
Commission.  I am not legally prohibited from voting on this item.  Please record my disclosure in 
the Commission’s minutes. 
 
Commissioner Alternate Nicholas Bryant made the following statement:   I have an interest in 
Agenda item 4.2.12 because I am employed by the Contra Costa County Employment and Human 
Services Department, and this item directly impacts my department.  I am recusing myself from 
these items and will be leaving the room. 
 
The Chair opened the discussion of item 4.2.2.  
 
There were no questions regarding this item.  
 
The Chair asked for a motion to approve item 4.2.2.  
 
Commissioner Alternate Gareth Ashley made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Lee Ross to 
approve agenda item 4.2.2: 
 

4.2.2 APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Executive Director, or her designee, to execute a contract with 
Counseling Options & Parent Education Support Center Inc. to provide Triple P classes to parents with 



 

4 
 

children ages birth to 5 years old utilizing certified trainers with skill sets in serving the developmental 
needs of young children and their families throughout Contra Costa County, in an amount not to 
exceed $144,014, for term July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024.  FY 2023-24 budget line: Early Intervention 
Initiative: Triple P Positive Parenting ($194,655).  Funded $92,023 from Prop 10 funds, $10,609 from 
Dean & Margaret Lesher Foundation and $92,023 from Contra Costa Health Services-Behavioral 
Health Division/Mental Health funds. 

Roll call of vote: 
Yes: District 1:  Dr. Rocio Hernandez 
 District 3:  Lee Ross  

District 4:  Alternate Gareth Ashley 
District 5:  Chair John Jones 
Board of Supervisors: Alternate Supervisor Ken Carlson  
Children & Families Services: Kathy Marsh 

 
Nos: None 

 
ABSTAIN: None 

 
Absent:   District 2:  Marilyn Cachola Lucey  

District 2:  Alternate Vidya Iyengar  
District 4:  Matt Regan  
Board of Supervisors:  Supervisor Candace Andersen  
EHSD:  Dr. Marla Stuart 
Children & Families Services:  Alternate Roslyn Gentry  

The motion was APPROVED. 
 
The chair opened the discussion of item 4.2.12. 
 
There were no questions regarding this item.  
 
The Chair asked for a motion to approve item 4.2.12.  
 
Commissioner Kathy Marsh made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Alternate Ken Carlson to 
approve agenda item 4.2.12: 
 

4.2.12.     AUTHORIZE and RATIFY the Executive Director or her designee to execute a contract amendment 
with Moore Iacofano Goltsman, Inc. to increase the payment limit by $6,200 (from $75,000 to 
$81,200) to coordinate and facilitate Contra Costa Children’s Leadership Council (CLC) meetings, 
activities and convenings. FY 2022-23 budget line: Professional Services: ($516,000).  Funded 100% 
Prop 10 funds.      

Roll call of vote: 
Yes: District 1:  Dr. Rocio Hernandez 
 District 3:  Lee Ross  



 

5 
 

District 4:  Alternate Gareth Ashley 
District 5:  Chair John Jones 
Board of Supervisors:  Alternate Supervisor Ken Carlson  
Children & Families Services: Kathy Marsh 

 
Nos: None 

 
ABSTAIN: None 

 
Absent:   District 2:  Marilyn Cachola Lucey 

District 2:  Alternate Vidya Iyengar  
District 4:  Matt Regan  
Board of Supervisors:  Supervisor Candace Andersen  
EHSD:  Dr. Marla Stuart 
Children & Families Services:  Alternate Roslyn Gentry  

The motion was APPROVED. 

The Chair asked the recused Commissioners to rejoin the meeting.  

Marilyn Cachola Lucey joined the meeting remotely due to Just Cause. 
 
6.0 Public Hearing on the First 5 Contra Costa Strategic Plan for FY23/24 to FY25/26 and Long-

Term Fiscal Plan  
Chair John Jones opened the public hearing at 6:17 pm and turned it over to Dr. Ruth Fernandez, 
Executive Director. Ruth presented with Camilla Rand, Deputy Director; Pankti Clerk, Finance and 
Operations Director; and Sandra Naughton, Policy, Strategy, and Evaluation Director.  
 
Every First 5 County Commission is required to have an adopted new or revised Strategic Plan 
and long-term plan to guide the Commission’s investments, goals, and priorities that aligns with 
Prop 10, by statute, the Executive Team presented the new Strategic Plan for FY23/24 to 
FY25/26. They discussed the need to focus the next three years on sustainability in order to 
strengthen and advance the mission of First 5 Contra Costa.  Ruth gave an overview of the 
intensive work that went into creating the Strategic Plan. She explained that in order to be 
sustainable for the long-term,  First 5 will need to increase partnerships to leverage funding;   
make  difficult decisions to pivot services that align to the mission and the three core areas of 
Early Childhood Education, Early Intervention and Strengthening Families;  and determine what 
services our community  partners are better equipped to provide. 
 
During their presentation, the Executive Team referred to the Theory of Change that provides the 
frame for this Strategic Plan. The core values: 1) Diversity and Inclusion, 2) Equity, 3) Cultural 
Humility, and 4) Community Partnership, together with the guiding principles, provide the 
context to our work within the four core strategies:  1) Capacity Building, 2) Research, 3) 
Resource Connection, and 4) Advocacy and Community Engagement.   
 
The Executive Team presented data on the changing demographics, community conditions, and 
changes in the early childhood systems landscape that impact the work.  Based on several data 



 

6 
 

reports identifying community need, the following themes emerged: 1) more access to services, 
2) more opportunities to learn, 3) an increased community voice and representation in decision 
making regarding services, and 4) access to culturally and linguistically responsive services 
throughout the county.   
 
Additionally, the Executive Team provided a summary of the 3-year fiscal outlook including an 
early set of projections, which identified a significant reduction in Tobacco Tax revenue, and has 
shaped the development of the 3-year Strategic Plan.  The long-term Fiscal Plan described in the 
Strategic Plan includes multiple strategies for long-term sustainability of First 5 Contra Costa, 
including the development of a 5-year Sustainability Plan and other strategies aimed at 
leveraging and maximizing available Prop 10 revenue with other public, private, and philanthropic 
funding. 
 
The Executive Team presented  the Strategic Roadmap which outlines how the agency will center 
its work on the three focus areas: Early Learning, Early Intervention, and Strengthening Families 
(formerly called Family Support). First 5 Contra Costa will primarily use its four core strategies 
and staff outlined several goals for work in each strategy area. Lastly, the agency will work on 
implementing the Strategic Plan by creating work streams and process improvements at an 
operational level. 
 
The complete Strategic Plan is posted on the First 5 Contra Costa website:  
https://www.first5coco.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/First5ContraCosta-Strategic-Plan-
2023.pdf  
 
After the presentation, the Executive Team heard comments and answered questions.  
 
Commissioner Ross asked how much in philanthropic funding is available to First 5 for FY23-24.  
Pankti Clerk, Finance and Operations Director explained there is currently $2 million, however, 
more funding is anticipated to help keep the agency fiscally solvent over the next few years.  
 
Commissioner Ashley voiced his concern that changes may result in a decline in the activities 
regarding equity, parks, funding, and volunteerism, like the resident work through the regional 
groups.  He again asked for assurances that any changes will not adversely affect resident 
volunteers and community engagement.   
 
Ruth reiterated the need for sustainability and focusing resources in areas that will best ensure a 
continuation of First 5’s mission. She restated that part of First 5 Contra Costa’s fiscal reality, will 
require taking a strategic and incremental shift in what and how the Commission funds programs, 
activities, and services – which will involve shifting away from investments that are outside the 
scope of the Core Focus Areas and that might be better aligned with local community partner 
organizations.  Ruth also assured the Commission that staff are committed to working in 
partnership with the community when planning transitions in programming and investments. 
 
Chair Jones also commented that the Commission should work in partnership with staff who are 
charged with designing and leading the processes to accomplish Strategic Plan goals and 
outcomes. 
 

https://www.first5coco.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/First5ContraCosta-Strategic-Plan-2023.pdf
https://www.first5coco.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/First5ContraCosta-Strategic-Plan-2023.pdf


 

7 
 

There were no public comments. 
 
The Chair closed the public hearing at 7:04pm and asked for a motion to adopt item 6.0.   

 
Commissioner Kathy Marsh made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Lee Ross to approve 
agenda item 6.0: 

Roll call of vote: 
Yes: District 1:  Dr. Rocio Hernandez  
 District 2:  Marilyn Cachola Lucey 

District 3:  Lee Ross  
District 5:  Chair John Jones 
Board of Supervisors:  Alternate Supervisor Ken Carlson  
Health Services:  Dr. Ori Tzvieli 
EHSD:  Alternate Nicholas Bryant 
Children & Families Services: Kathy Marsh 

 
Nos: None 
 
ABSTAIN:   District 4:  Alternate Gareth Ashley 
 
Absent:   District 2:  Alternate Vidya Iyengar  

District 4:  Matt Regan  
Board of Supervisors:  Supervisor Candace Andersen  
EHSD:  Dr. Marla Stuart 
Children & Families Services:  Alternate Roslyn Gentry  

The motion was ADOPTED. 

7.0 Receive staff presentation of the refreshed First 5 Contra Costa website.  
 
Sandra Naughton, Policy, Strategy, and Evaluation Director gave a presentation on the progress of 
the planned refresh of the First 5 Contra Costa website.  She provided a preview of the webpages 
and explained the new navigation is intended to lead the audience to connect with programs and 
contacts.   
 
She requested of the Commission to: 1) help promote the new website, and 2) identify families 
who are not familiar with First 5 to review the new site and provide feedback before it goes live at 
the end of July.  
 
After the presentation, Commissioner Ross asked if other languages will be available.  Sandra 
shared a Spanish version will be available.  
 
Commissioner Marsh asked if there will be a Resource page with quick answers.  Sandra answered 
yes, but it will be limited because the goal is to connect the audience to an active services broker/ 
resource person.   



 

8 
 

 
Commissioner Jones asked for any public comments or questions.   
 
Via the chat in Zoom, LaTrena Robinson made a recommendation to add quick access links to the 
First 5 Centers   to better serve busy parents.  Sandra affirmed there will be quick access links 
available on the website.  

8.0    Communications  
The following documents were included in the packet and informational items: 

• Board of Supervisors Approved Conflict of Interest Code for First 5 Contra Costa 
• First 5 Association of California letter outlining MHSA Proposal Concerns 
• Early Care and Education (ECE) Coalition Letter:  ECE Priority Asks for FY 23/24 Budget 

 
Commissioner Gareth asked if the changes to the Conflict-of-Interest policy were related to 
Managers. Ruth responded, yes; and added that revisions also included new hires and their specific 
job titles. 
 

9.0 Commissioner F.Y.I. Updates 
 

10.0 Adjourn 

The meeting adjourned at 7:20 PM. 
 

 

The First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to 
participate in Commission meetings who contact the Commission’s offices, at least 48 hours before the meeting, at (925) 771-7300. Any 
disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and distributed by the First 5 Contra Costa Children and 
Families Commission to a majority of members of the First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission less than 96 hours prior to that 
meeting are available for public inspection at 4005 Port Chicago Highway, Suite 120, Concord, CA 94520 during normal business hours. In 
consideration of those who may suffer from chemical sensitivities or who may have allergic reactions to heavy scents, First 5 Contra Costa 
requests that staff and visitors refrain from wearing perfume, cologne, or the use of strongly scented products in the workplace. We thank you for 
your consideration of others. 

 

 

 



 

 

 

4005 Port Chicago Highway, Suite 120, Concord, CA 94520 • 925.771.7300 • fax 925.771.6083 • www.first5coco.org 
 
 

 
                                                      Executive Committee Meeting 
                                                                                      MINUTES 
                                                                      Monday, April 17, 2023 at 5:00 PM 
                                                 4005 Port Chicago Highway, Suite 120, Concord, CA 94520 
 
1.0 
 

Convene and Call to Order 
Meeting called to order at 5:05 p.m. 
 
In attendance:  Chair, John Jones; Vice Chair Dr. Rocio Hernandez; and Secretary/ Treasurer, Matt 
Regan.  
 
Remote Attendance: Marilyn Cachola-Lucey. 
 
Staff present: Executive Director, Ruth Fernandez; Deputy Director, Camilla Rand; Policy and 
Strategy Director, Sandra Naughton; Finance and Operations Director, Pankti Clerk; Human 
Resources Manager, Tammy Henry. 
 

 

2.0 
 
 
 
 
 
3.0 

Closed Session  
The Chair asked the staff present to exit the room and started closed session at 5:10pm.  
 
Chair Jones ended the closed session at 5:50pm and called staff to return to the room to resume 
open session.  
 
Public Comment 
None 
 

 

4.0 Approve the minutes of the Executive Committee meeting of February 13, 2023.  
 Matt Regan made a motion seconded by Marilyn Lucey. 

  
Roll-call Vote:  
John Jones – Yes 
Dr. Rocio Hernandez – Yes 
Matt Regan – Yes  
Marilyn Lucey - Yes 
 
Minutes Approved  
 

 

5.0 CONSIDER accepting the report on significant program, financial or contracts matters, and on 
any personnel matters relating to Commission staff. 
Staff provided a high-level overview of the FY23/24 Budget, budget assumptions and implications. 
Budget was prepared with the most up to date information available from the State on Proposition 10 
revenue projections and state grants from First 5 California.  
 
Ruth provided brief comments on the strategic planning process in preparation for the new three-year 
Strategic Plan for FY23/24-FY25/26.  She mentioned the three staff work groups that are informing 
the content for the strategic plan in the following areas: Sustainability; Capacity Building; and 
Advocacy and Community Engagement.  Staff are working diligently to complete a draft Strategic 

 

http://www.first5coco.org/


 

 

 

4005 Port Chicago Highway, Suite 120, Concord, CA 94520 • 925.771.7300 • fax 925.771.6083 • www.first5coco.org 
 
 

Plan to present to the Commission at the June Commission Meeting. Ongoing discussions are taking 
place to re-evaluate First 5’s role and strategies to support programs, services and activities that are 
better led by other local entities/partners that focus on issue areas that fall outside of the three core 
focus areas of Early Childhood Education, Early Intervention and Family Support. 

    
    
6.0 CONSIDER accepting amended Conflict of Interest Code for the Contra Costa County Children and 

Families Commission 
Commissioner Regan made a motion seconded by Commissioner Dr. Hernandez.  
 
Roll-call Vote:  
John Jones – Yes 
Dr. Rocio Hernandez – Yes 
Matt Regan – Yes  
Marilyn Lucey - Yes 

 

 

7.0 
 

CONSIDER accepting the report on statewide activities pertaining to children 0-5, including the 
activities of the First 5 Association of California, First 5 California, and other statewide advocacy 
groups. 
 
Ruth mentioned that she would cover state updates during the Commission’s ED Report. 

 

   
8.0 Communications  

2023 Brown Act Updates – Teleconferencing Guidelines provided in the packet. 
 

 

9.0 Adjourn 
Meeting Adjourned at 6:01 p.m.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The public may comment on any agenda item or any item of public interest within the jurisdiction of the First 5 Contra Costa 
Children and Families Commission.  In accordance with the Brown Act, if a member of the public addresses an item not on the 
posted agenda, no response, discussion, or action on the item may occur. 
 
The First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities 
planning to participate in Commission meetings who contact the Commission’s offices, at least 48 hours before the meeting, at 
(925) 771-7300. 
 
Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and distributed by the First 5 Contra 
Costa Children and Families Commission to a majority of members of the First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
less than 96 hours prior to that meeting are available for public inspection at 4005 Port Chicago Highway, Suite 1200, Concord, 
CA 94520 during normal business hours. 
In consideration of those who may suffer from chemical sensitivities and may have allergic reactions to heavy scents, First 5 
Contra Costa requests that staff and visitors refrain from wearing perfume, cologne, or the use of strongly scented products in 
the workplace.  We thank you for your consideration of others. 

 

http://www.first5coco.org/


PROGRAM UPDATES 
June 2023 

 

www.first5coco.org | (925) 771-7300 

Family Support 

Our Family Support (FS) initiative helps families build healthy relationships, strengthen support systems, and nurture 

their children’s development. 

 

First 5 Centers’ Transition 

Once the Request for Qualifications process was complete, Lisa Korb, Family Support Program Officer 

was able to begin contract negotiations and finalize transition plans for the two First 5 Centers that will 

transition from our current contractor to a new operator. 

 

Lincoln Families will be operating the East County First 5 Center. First 5 is 

excited to welcome another operator to the First 5 Center contractors. 

Rooted in the Pittsburg and Antioch communities through their work with 

schools and youth, Lincoln Families will add a new department and 

perspective to our network of Centers. Their experience as a Family 

Resource Center (FRC) operator in West Oakland, operating the Mandela 

FRC, promises to add even further insight to our work in Contra Costa. 

 

The East County First 5 Center will have an informal “Meet and Greet” with families on July 7 from 12:00 

– 2:00 pm. This is when families will meet one of the “faces” of Lincoln Families, Chris Nguon who will be 

able to reassure everyone that when the doors open the following week they will be greeted by familiar 

faces. Lincoln has hired staff and a consultant to help prepare them for their new role. First 5 looks 

forward to orienting and working with Lincoln Families in the coming months. 

 

Bay Area Community Resources (BACR), the long-time operator of our West County First 5 Center, has 

hired all the existing Monument First 5 Center staff and will start their year with some strategic planning. 

They plan to open for drop-in programming July 17. 

 

The Antioch/Delta First 5 Centers will now be two separate entities, each having their own Center Director 

and dedicated staff, and Aspiranet will continue to be the operator of these two sites. The Delta First 5 

Center will open in July and be available to Antioch families up until August 15 when Apsiranet hopes to 

have the staff in place to reopen the Antioch First 5 Center.       

 

Family Economic Security Partnership  

The Family Economic Security Partnership (FESP) is a public, private and nonprofit collaboration dedicated to 

increasing the income and building the assets of low-income families and individuals living in Contra Costa County. 

 

Featured at the Children’s Leadership 

Council Convening  

FESP was featured at the Contra Costa 

Children’s Leadership Council convening on 

June 21 at the Perera Pavilion in Pleasant Hill. 

Sandra Naughton, First 5 Policy, Strategy, and 

Evaluation Director, spoke during a segment that 

featured an “overview of collaborative projects” 

around the county and was one of nine projects 

that were highlighted by speakers from First 5, 

Contra Costa Health, and Employment and 

Human Services.  

http://www.first5coco.org/
https://www.first5coco.org/childrens-leadership-council/
https://www.first5coco.org/childrens-leadership-council/


PROGRAM UPDATES 
June 2023 

 

www.first5coco.org | (925) 771-7300 

During the convening, there was an expo that included tables set up for attendees to learn more about 

projects, organizations, and services around the county. Sandra and Jessica Keener, First 5 Ready Kids 

East County Initiative Coordinator, passed out "FESP dollars" that featured information about FESP, 

contact info, and invited attendees to play a Spin the Wheel game with trivia related to poverty in our 

county, self-sufficiency in our county, and FESP activities. Many of the attendees signed-up for the first 

time to receive FESP-related communications.  

 

Early Intervention 

Our Early Intervention (EI) initiative aims to ensure that families have access to prevention and early intervention 

supports and services that foster the optimal development of all children. 

 

The Results Are In 

First 5 Contra Costa received our Help Me Grow (HMG) Annual Fidelity/Sustainability summary report 

from HMG National. The report details each of the required HMG System Activities and Core 

Components with the highest level of functioning being the implementation stage. First 5 Contra Costa 

meets these standards across all its activities and core components.  

 

Hub Activities 

Staff Development 

Emily Hampshire, Resiliency and Trauma Coordinator, is officially certified as a Trauma Informed Care 

101 trainer. Congratulations Emily! 

 

Collaborations 

In continuing our relationship with the Family Violence Prevention Coalition, we attend quarterly meetings 

and engage in dialogue around how our county can move upstream and focus on prevention and public 

health models in our work. The next Coalition meeting will be open to the community on July 13, and will 

include updates on the new Contra Costa Health gun violence prevention coalition/project. 

 

Training 

The Contra Costa Network of Care Hub offered a 

training by the MISSSEY Organization on human 

trafficking on June 8. Twenty-four  participants took part 

in the training and the workshop aimed to engage and 

educate community members about human trafficking 

and commercial sexual exploitation. Speaker Andrea 

Diaz, Training Institute Manager, provided a general 

understanding of these issues as well as an in-depth 

discussion of the intersections at which trafficking, and 

exploitation occur. Participants gained an increased understanding of what children, and their caregivers 

are experiencing, best practices on how we engage with those impacted, and how as members of the 

community we can be sources of support. Evaluation responses showed that participants found the 

workshop to beneficial. 

 

Safe Spaces 

The Office of the Surgeon General is launching a new professional training program on June 30 - Safe 

Spaces: Foundations of Trauma-Informed Practice for Educational and Care Settings. 

 

http://www.first5coco.org/
https://misssey.org/
https://osg.ca.gov/safespaces/
https://osg.ca.gov/safespaces/


PROGRAM UPDATES 
June 2023 

 

www.first5coco.org | (925) 771-7300 

Early Childhood Prevention and Intervention Coalition (ECPIC) 

ECPIC members submitted a letter to state legislators regarding potential changes to the Mental Health 

Services Act funding categories. The members voiced concerns about removing existing state 

requirements related to MHSA funding at the county level. The members are advocating for continuing 

the existing structure and adding a requirement to designate a specific percentage of funding for children 

ages 0-5. 

 

Early Childhood Education 

Our Early Childhood Education (ECE) Initiative aims to ensure that all children have access to high-quality, 

affordable child care and early learning. 

 

Ready Kids East County (RKEC) Initiative 

Tandem, Partners in Early Learning  

Tandem, Partners in Early Learning has launched their 

asynchronous, or at-home, version of their “Give Me Five 

Math” program. “Give Me 5 Math @ Home” is a self-paced, 

play and learn series for families to explore early math 

concepts together. 30 children—nearly half of whom were 

identified by parents or caregivers to be Black or African 

American—have been enrolled to take part in the East 

Contra Costa County summer 2023 cohort. As part of the 

program, each child receives 5 kits, each packed with 

books and materials for engaging and hands-on activities that focus on developing family math skills. 

Families have started picking up their kits from the Antioch and Pittsburg libraries, who are serving as 

partner locations where families can go and pick up their materials. Families will be able to stay 

connected and check in through a cohort Facebook Group over the next several weeks.  

 

Lil Libraries Around Town 

Tandem set up “Lil Libraries Around Town,'' a program that will be  community-based and seeks to 

increase the quantity and quality of literary materials available for Black and African American children 

ages birth to five years old in East Contra Costa County. Ten  barbershops in Pittsburg and Antioch have 

agreed to participate in the program and at least five of the small businesses are owned by Black or 

African American proprietors. These literacy stations will be stocked with high-quality books that are also 

culturally and linguistically relevant. After children read or engage with a certain number of books, they 

will be eligible to receive a free service from the barber and/or hairdresser paid for through funds from the 

Ready Kids East County grant.  

 

Contra Costa Children’s Leadership Council  

The Contra Costa Children’s Leadership Council (CLC) strives to serve as the ‘Big Tent’ for our children—a space 

for all child- and youth-serving organizations to connect and innovate solutions to local issues. 

 

CLC hosts first In-person Convening since 2018  

On June 21, the CLC hosted its first in-person convening since 2018 at the Perera Pavilion in Pleasant 

Hill. An estimated 125 people had the opportunity to learn more about several county-wide collaborative 

projects aiming to improve systems and outcomes for children and families. The convening featured 

speakers from organizations around the county including First 5 Contra Costa, Contra Costa Health, 

Employment and Human Services, as well as Supervisor Candace Anderson, Supervisor Ken Carlson, 

and Supervisor John Gioia. 

http://www.first5coco.org/


PROGRAM UPDATES 
June 2023 

 

www.first5coco.org | (925) 771-7300 

 

The day also featured a panel on how “Collaboration Makes a Difference” that featured Wanda Davis 

(First 5 Contra Costa), Kathy Marsh (Employment and Human Services), and Safanit Mekuria (Contra 

Costa Health and First 5 Alternate Commssioner). Other discussions included trauma-informed practices 

and approaches, guaranteed income for childcare workers, Black infant health, perinatal health, 

workforce programs for youth, oral health—as well as reflection activities and affinity break-out groups for 

young children, school-age children, youth, and families. The afternoon ended with closing remarks from 

Anna Roth, Chief Executive Officer of Contra Costa Health and a call to action from Marla Stuart, Director 

of Contra Costa Employment & Human Services Department.  

 

The excitement and energy from the audience was high and many of the early feedback has been “we 

need more of this.” Here are a few photos from a day filled with collaboration and conversations: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.first5coco.org/


E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r’

s
 R

e
p

o
rt

C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

J
U

L
Y

 1
0

, 
2

0
2

3



In
te

rn
a

l 
U

p
d

a
te

s

•
S

ta
ff

in
g

:
R

e
cr

u
it

m
e

n
t 

In
-P

ro
g

re
ss

•
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s:
S

ta
rt

e
d

 A
n

n
u

a
l A

u
d

it
 C

yc
le

 a
n

d
 

C
lo

si
n

g
 F

Y
 2

2
/2

3

•
O

rg
a

n
iz

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
ie

s:
 

D
e

ve
lo

p
in

g
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

W
o

rk
p

la
n

s 

•
W

e
b

si
te

 R
e

fr
e

sh
:

L
a

u
n

ch
 E

n
d

 o
f 

Ju
ly

E
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T



C
o

u
n

ty
 U

p
d

a
te

s

•
C

LC
 1

st
 I
n

-p
e

rs
o

n
 C

o
n

ve
n

in
g

 o
n

 
Ju

n
e

 2
1

, H
u

g
e

 S
u

cc
e

ss
!

•
C

o
n

g
re

ss
m

a
n

 D
e

S
a

u
ln

ie
r 

vi
si

ts
 

Fi
rs

t 
5

 C
o

n
tr

a
 C

o
st

a

•
A

ss
e

t 
Fu

n
d

e
rs

 N
e

tw
o

rk
 W

e
b

in
a

r:

“G
u

a
ra

n
te

ed
 I
n

co
m

e:
C

en
te

ri
n

g
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
V
o

ic
es

 in
 P

o
lic

y 
A
d

vo
ca

cy
 a

n
d

 D
es

ig
n

”

•
Fi

rs
t 

5
 C

e
n

te
r 

Tr
a

n
si

ti
o

n
s

•
M

e
a

su
re

 X
 U

p
d

a
te

s

E
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T



S
ta

te
 U

p
d

a
te

s

E
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T

•
R

e
g

io
n

a
l H

o
m

e
 V

is
it

in
g

 a
n

d
 

IM
P

A
C

T
 L

e
g

a
cy

 A
p

p
lic

a
ti

o
n

s

•
Fi

rs
t 

5
 A

ss
o

ci
a

ti
o

n
 U

p
d

a
te

s



June 22, 2023 
 

 
 
Governor Gavin Newsom 
1021 O Street, Suite 9000 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

 
Senator Nancy Skinner, Chair 
Senate Committee on Budget and Fiscal Review 
1020 N Street, Suite 503 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

 
Assemblymember Phil Ting, Chair 
Assembly Budget Committee 
1021 O Street, Suite 8230 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

 
Secretary Mark Ghaly 
California Health & Human Services Agency 
1215 O Street 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

 
Re: Concerns about the Current Proposal to Adjust the Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) 

 
Dear Governor Newsom, Senator Skinner, Assemblymember Ting, and Secretary Ghaly: 

 
The Contra Costa County Early Childhood Prevention & Intervention Coalition (ECPIC) has concerns about 
some of the current proposals to adjust the Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) that we feel will 
jeopardize the mental health and well-being of our county’s youngest and currently underserved 
population: children ages 0 to 5 years old. 
 
We are concerned about the proposal to eliminate the requirement that counties set aside 20% of MHSA 
expenditures for prevention and early intervention, and the requirement that they use 51% of those 
prevention and interventions funds on children ages 0 to 25 years old. We fear that removing these 
requirements will reduce our county’s investment in upstream, evidence-based prevention services that 
children in our county desperately need, given the immense unmet needs that also exist among our adult 
populations with severe mental illness. While we are hopefully that our county will proactively work to 
serve all populations in need, currently MHSA funds are one of the most significant sources of funding for 
prevention-focused services for ages 0 to 5. 
 
Our county, like so many others, need a safeguarded source of public funding to support upstream 
prevention mental health services for young children, starting at birth through their first five critical 
years of development, to reach their full potential. Research shows that the brain development of infants 
and toddlers is more rapid and foundational than that of any other age group, and that babies’ earliest 
relationships and experiences shape the architecture of their brain which has lifelong impacts on their 
well-being. 



Based on our collective experience working with young children and families in Contra Costa County, we 
the members of the county-wide, multi-disciplinary Contra Costa Early Childhood Prevention and 
Intervention Coalition (ECPIC) recommend that counties be required to spend a minimum percentage of 
MHSA funds on prevention and intervention services, as well as being required to spend a minimum 
percentage of MHSA funds on their youngest population-prenatal through age 5. Among the ECPIC 
members are several early childhood mental health community-based organizations who have decades 
of experience serving families in Contra Costa County. These members have witnessed first-hand the 
difference that early intervention and treatment can mean for a young child and their family. We have 
seen successful examples where early childhood mental health consultations, home visiting, 
developmental playgroups, parenting education and parent support groups have transformed the 
trajectory of children’s and families’ lives. Unfortunately, they have also witnessed far too many local 
families whose mental health needs were not met due to a scarcity of resources. 
 
We strongly recommend that MHSA retain a requirement that counties spend a minimum percentage of 
funding on prevention and intervention, in addition to a required minimum percentage on children ages 0 
to 5. 

 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 
Contra Costa County Early Childhood Prevention & Intervention Coalition (ECPIC) 

ECPIC members apply their expertise in early childhood mental health to advocate for the prioritization 
of the social emotional needs of young children (prenatal-6 years old) in state and county systems. 

Member Organizations: 

• CoCoKids 
• Contra Costa ARC/Lynn Center 
• Contra Costa Crisis Center 
• Contra Costa Employment and Human Services Department, Community Services Bureau 
• Early Childhood Mental Health Program 
• First 5 Contra Costa 
• We Care Service For Children 



�����������	
�������
������������
�����������������
�����������������
��������������
������
����������
������������	������� 
�����
��!�
������"����
�������#����$�%�������&��������'���
������
��
(�#��%����'���
��

)*+,-,./0123�456�7889�35�:75;�57�318�<2=>?5@7>2�A69B83�982=CD�/EFGGE�HEFE+�EIJ�E+GKG,�H*/GLLMNIG�OPQ�OROS

T���
����������������




���������	
�������������������������������������������������������������� ��!����"���"�������#!����� $����� ��������  ������������������"����#�  ��� ������������������������������������������ ��"������������������������!�����������%� ���������$&!������������������������������������ �"���&! "�'��(��$�(�����)��������� ��� ����� �����*++,-+./0�,+0*1�+2345��������"��������������� ������������#!����6�*�789:�;2<<2,+�=>/+02+3�><*+��������"��"����������������������������������?@A�#�  ���B� !��������������!����������������"������$������� ��� "������������������  ����!��!�����������#!�������������������� �"��#"����������C��������������� !�������������������!��!��������� ���������"� ��������������$�D������ ����������������������"���������E��������������������������������F������������� ����������� �������!������������!�������������������"�����!�� �!�������G��������BG���&��H!���I����� ��$�JK������� ��������!��� �#� � ������������ �����#"�����B������������� ������"����E�����������  ������ �����������������������������L�)����������������������$G����M�������M���D��N,+2��5O2+=����G�����������������������������J������L��������� �����������������������!��!��������������J�������"���������!������H!��"�#"� �"����������!������������!�������!��������! ���# �����!��������  �#����������������������! ��������������!��!�����E���$L�N4/�3,P/Q+,Q�*+0�</32=<*52P/�</*0/Q=�*<=,�5,-5/0��������"�����# �������������"������!��������������� �������������������������������"�������� �������������$)������ ����������������#!������� !�������!���#� ��"����!���������������������� �������������F������������������!�����$�RD���������#!������������!�!��L������
���# "�G������+54,+1��/+0,+������������������������������! ����������������������C����� ����
���# "��#���,;/Q5��2P*=����G� �����������������S����"-+0/Q�*�+/3,52*5/0�5Q*+=252,+$��T���  ��������� ������������#!����#�  ���  �#���������#"�#�������
���# "�����G��������"����������#"�)��������������$�D������ ��!��#�����!# �����������������#!���B� ����#�  ��6��� �������������������������� ��"������6��� ���G��!���"�������������! ��  ����H!�������������"�#����� �# �����!# ������������UV���!���#������"�����$



��������	�
��������
�������
������
�
�������
�������	��
���	�
���
 �	��	�	���
��
!"��
#$
	�
��%��
��
����
������	�"�	����
%��%�	��&
'���
	��%
���
�
#()%�*
�	�%��
���
+�����
��
�	��
��
,���
���
-	���
	������	�� ����"��
��
���
���
�	%��
��
�����
�
%���
-*
'"��%�*&'�	�
*���.�
�����	��	���
����
����
���"���
%"�
��
�
/0#&$
-	��	��
%��	�	��
�
���� 
��������
�	��
��12��
���������������
���
����
���
*����&
'��
%��	�	�
	�
���
���"��
��
�
%����"��
	�
���
����
�����
3
�
42���5��
����5�65751�6�
�2��1�
��
8��	����	�.�
�����
��,��"��
-���"��
��
	��
���	����
��
	�����
��9���
�� ��	���*
�����
���	��
�������&
:���	��
���
 �����	��
�"�����
��,��"�
%���	����
���
-"%���
%���
������
���
��,�����
��
%���*�
�	�����	�	���	��
��
���
;��	����"���
���)�	��
� ��%	��
����	������
-�����
<����
#&'��
������
��21���
�=5�
����
���
����
��%�
����
��� �	����%
����
���*
8��	����	���
����
������%
"��	�>���-���
	�����%
��
? �	��
��
�	��
	�����
��9
���"���
-���"��
��
�����)������%
%	������
%�������	����
��	����%�
	�
���%
��
 	�
%���
�
 ���	��
�	�"��
��
���
�����.�
��,��"�&
?%%
��
����
+�����.�
56�5���61�
�=��
���5����2��
����24�
�	�
������
 �� ����
��
24��=���
�=�
���@5��56���21���
���
��A��
	�������"��"��
 ��A����
-*
�����	��
���
���%���
8��	����	�
B�,	���������
C"��	�*
?���
���,�
����
����
��"�	��
�%,������
��%
%�,��� ���
��,�
%����%�%
���
*����&
'��
��,�����
�����%
�
 �����
��
##
����"����
������	%�
���
��	�
-"%���
-	���
����
�	�
��
�������	��
��� ���	��	��
 ������
�����
��%�����
�����
��%
�����
��,��������D
�	�	�
���
�	��
��"���
��,�
��
����
������������
��,	���������
��,	���D
��%
	�������
�"�%	��
��
�����
�����	��&;�������
 "���%
��
����	%��
���
 ���
�"��	%�
��
���
-"%���
 ������
��
���*
��"�%
��,�
����
�	��
��
��,	��	��
 �����	��
�������
��%
��
�E�@��
�=�
��2�2���
F����
��66��
����
���
�������&
'���
�������	�"�
/#G
-	��	�� ��A���
��"�%
���%
�����
����
���
H���������)H��
!��I"	�
�����
��"��
��
(J
�	��	��
 �� ��
��%
J$K�KKK�����
��
�������%&
L���
���
����
�����
�	���	����
��
���
%���
3
���
�"��
���
�����
 ����
��
	�,���
	�
�����
�*
 ��	�*
�����
������,�
-���
��	�	��
 �	���
�	���
+�����
	��%
���
���
-"%���
 ������
	�
!��"��*
M5�=
=5�
565�5��
��2�2���&
N215��
���451��
�6�
�=�
��7���
6��;��)	�����
���	�	��
���
����	,�
�����
�"-�	%	��
��
 �*
���
��	�%
����
��"�%
���
�
6���O��5@56��526
2712���@�6��
����
��
P���	�*
����Q
"�%��
���
-"%���
-	���
����
���
 ���
��
���
;��	����"��.�
���������
�	��+�����&




������������	
��
����������������������������������������	�	���������������	�������������������������	
�������������������������������������������� �!���������������	�����������������	�	�����������������������"����������#$�������	��	�
�������������������� �����������	���������	�
���������	��������	�����"�����
�	���
��������	������%&��&'(��)�*'�)�)���	����	����+,$�	�
������	����	����������������-������	������.#�	��	�����"���/�����������0�����������������������������������������
��
������ �1���������������	������������������2�����������������	���	����������������	����������������"���	�����2����	�������	
3	�����	����������4�����5�����	�	�����	�����������
�	���
��������	����5���	�� ���������	��������	�������	�	��������������
�����
����������	�������"������������
������������6�	��� 

789:;<;8�=>:8?�@89<ABC�<A;DE:B?�B?:>DDBE�89�AB:�89FA>GB�E8H<8:B�;?�I8?�J>CB�>?�K>LM�NO�NPNNM�7A>9>�QH�R8S:B�T?E:;DD>?�U>:�V8D=899B:CW�����	�	������������������	����������������
�����	�	����
�����������������
������������	��"���5�����������������	�����������������������������	����	��
�����	�������������������X�����������X�Y��� �1��������������



����������	
��������������������
����������������������������������������������������
��������������������
����������������� �!!�"#�$%�&��'&$&(�)!%&*�"�� ��� �!$�$+!�,����-�����
��.���������������������������
�	
��������
���
�	��
������-��������	
���	��
������.������������
���-�/�������0�/�����/�
�������1���������������������������������������-���2����
��	������
�������������.�
-�-��	�������	����������	�����������-�����������
��������
3���-�����
���
�����/	�-���,�����
��������-�����
��������
��	�����4���������
������.�������
�
��������������5�6��
��������
�������/�
�����������������
������7��8��.������������3��������������-�����9	������.������	��
3���������
��-�����
����������3������
��������
��
��
�1����/���*�"*"!� �$"� ""!�)�:"�;���<+&��=�)$!��
�������
���
�
������
������������������
�����������	����������.�
������������/����
���������
����.��
�����	����������
�	��������������������������������	������������������
��������,���>�-�����	�������-�����������
������-�����
��/����0����
-���������������������	��������������������3��?���������
��
����������������������������
������-��������������.���������
�
-�����������������	���/����������������/	�-����������@�ABCDDB�EFCDG�CDH�IJKLMB�NLOP�%&$�")�' &=�$��*�"���=!1��	����������������
�����/�����������������
-�����.������?�/�����
������
�������
���/	�-����-�����
��

�	
����/����
��������
������>�-�����	����Q��-�����������������������������
���R���.�
-���������������/������������
��
-��������������������������
-�
-���
�����
��R����.�������������/�--�����	��������
-��?ST�������
��U	����
�/����-���	��	����
����	-����
��������������
������������	����,�������������
���45�T�/�����
��
������������0������	������4T�V�/�����
����������
������������/��������
��������5�
�������������/	�-������������
-���������3����
�
�����������
��,������?�/�����
��	�����	
��������46����	����
��
��	
��
-����������������0��������-�
������������
���/��������W�3����������
�����XY�Z&  &")�'+$�$%�$�$%���"[��)"��*�"*"!���&)�\�)+��]��
�������4�/�����
��	��	���
����
���̂	
��54�/	�-���������������������/������>�-�����	���1/�	���5��/�����
��
����-���������������������������������������(��"_�=&!!&")�[�%&' ��=�)��$��R��������������-�
���������������	���
-�R������
��
�����
��/	�-����-�����
��



��������	
�
������������
���������������	���
����	�	�
���������	��	�
�������	������������������������	������������	�	
�����	������������������������
���������������	
������������������

��
�	
���	���������
���	������� ��	��������!�
��"�
	�������	���	��������������#������������$�%���������������	��
���	�����&�

'()*+()*�,(-�.*/010-�2-�-34(5606�2*�07418�9(4*2*/�:(7-+71�;(/�7*6�-9(/<�=3(+(�>8�?2:3746�@(/01A�.=�=3(+(B����
#	��
��
���	������#����	������
���
�����������������	�
������������C��	���
	�����������	
��	������������������	
������
������������	��	�
���
���������	��������
���%D�������	�����������������������
����������������$����	�	�"���������������	�����������E������
���	����&!��"�C������
����	����F����	#�����������#����"������C��	���
	��G
#	��
��
����H���������	��	
����������
���������������	
����

��
�����������������%D�����	�������	�	��	�
$�����	
����������	
�IJIK������������	���������
��
�	�������
�������	��������	�
�&



������������	
�����	������������������������������������������������ ���!��"#$�	�#	%
�#&&�'��	�(�'�����!��������'� 
���������������	"��)�#����*���'	��
�
�����
 
�����"�'#	#	������*�'	����
+,�$�	#�-������
�
�
�����$���
#-��#&��!��.��
�.����!�$��-�*���	�
 ��
+/#	���
���'�0�	�"�#�����	��
����"��'��
�.�������������#� 
��-#��)�
������&#	�'��������	")���&	�
�	 '� 	�������!� 	'!�
��#&�1�	#2�-�

�#��� 
�
�&#	�"���	���#�	���#�
���
����0�
����3�-���4�.0���&���#.�.��!�5�*�6��4#��')+�6�$���!#.�'���	�����	#��� ���'��	��
#	����#����)
����-�����"�"	���!# 
��"�
���	"��
0�	�#	���1��"��	��
����
�-#	����0�4�.�
���+�78���#$�����'�	�'�� 
�
�����.�����#�
���-#	��#&��!�-�����.�����#����'�	�&)��!������	��&������ ���!�	���
��#�- '!�#�����#�	 ����"����'�	�'�� 
�
��&�)# ��#�%��!�$�����	��
���
)
��-09�4�.�
���+��7:��! 	�
��#�!�$���#�-�;��!����	���#&&0�� ��&	#-�-)��	
�'��$������
�����''�������#����#�-�;������!�
�� �"���
�� ���#�+9<#�-�;�� �&#	��!��' �
0�5�.
#-�!�
�
����!���
�
��;��"�&���	���'��-����& ����"�&	#-��!��:�&����#��=�� '��#��'�������!��:�&	�
�	 '� 	��:�$�
�-��������3#�
��'�+�>����
#�!�
��
;����!��?�"�
��� 	���#�
��;�$#��	
%��	#$��#&���'��-�����#��0�	��"��"�&	#-�@A��#�@BA������#�+C�DEFGHIJKL�MHNLO���P���Q�������RSTU����������<!��� �"�����'� ��
���!�
�#	�'0�V+WWX�'#
�2#&2��$��"���( 
�-����&#	�Y���&#	���%
� ���'�
'!##�
+�<!���#���4	##
���#��ZV�& ����"�&#	��!��W[W\2W]�&�
'���)��	�.�������@B[V+\������#�+�̂ ���!��"#$�	�#	������!��?�"�
��� 	���
#��"	�����#�
#-��!�&�)�' �
+/�	
��#&&��
��!��@W[[�-����#����'	��
���#��!���	�
0�_ 
�'0�:�
�	 '��#����_���	���
�̀�
'	���#��	)�̂�#';�6	���+�̀
������
���-�0�
'!##����
�	�'�
�.�	�����#.����#� 
���!�
�-#��)�#���$�	)�!��"�&	#-�&�'������
��#�
���	��
+�:�3�� �	)0�5�.
#-�	##
���
��
!��"�@B+V������#�0�� ��!�
�#&&�'�� ���-����)��"	�����#�"#�.��!��!��?�"�
��� 	�%

-����	�' �+<!��"#$�	�#	�����?�"�
��� 	����
#�-�������!��-�������#�	�� '���!��?��	���"�=�'#$�	)�̂�#';�6	�����)�@B+A�����#�0����$��"�@A+\������#���$���������#���
�	�'�
�&#	�!����"�
� ����
�	�'#$�	�&	#-�����-�'2�	�����	���"��#

+



���������	
���
�����
���
������������
������
�����������������������
������������	�����

������
�����������������������������
���������
������� !��"�#��$%
�
���$��
�&�'�����(
�����)������*+�,�-./�0.+�123�456789.,�,4:2;,<86=�<>8�-?4/8<�.+;7?486�@A�B.77.2+�123�<>8�C,7.123+.,�D8E,3<B8+<�21�F4?;,<.2+<2�123B�,+�.+48E8+48+<�<,6G�123;8�<>,<�02?74�;2BE.78�,�7.6<�21�6;388+.+/�<2276�?684�<2�<86<�6<?48+<6�1234.11.;?7<.86�0.<>�38,4.+/H�C,7.123+.,�.6�;?338+<75�IJK�IL�MN�OPQPKO�<>,<�4286+R<�6;388+�,77�6<?48+<6�123�456789.,=486E.<8�>,:.+/�,�/2:83+23�0>2R6�-88+�2?<6E2G8+�,-2?<�>.6�E,6<�6<3?//786�0.<>�<>8�78,3+.+/�4.6,-.7.<5H�S>8�@A�B.77.2+�.6�T?6<�<>8�-8/.++.+/H�D.6<3.;<6�0.77�-8�38U?.384�<2�6;388+�,77�6<?48+<6�6<,3<.+/�.+�<>8�VWVXYVZ6;>227�58,3=�?6.+/�2+8�21�<>8�<2276�,EE32:84�-5�<>8�<,6G�123;8H�[4:2;,<86=�\J]̂_̀\Ja�]̂QOObIIc�PKQ]dKbO=�6,5.<R6�72+/�2:834?8HS>8�-?4/8<�,762�.+;7?486�,�@eWW�B.77.2+�fKg_\Ph�c_̂P\î\Kbj�,772;,<84�123�6;>2276�0.<>�<>8�>./>86<;2+;8+<3,<.2+6�21�k62;.28;2+2B.;,775�4.6,4:,+<,/84l�6<?48+<6=�0>.;>�.+;7?486�6<?48+<6�132B�720Y.+;2B8>2?68>2746=�6<?48+<6�89E83.8+;.+/�>2B87866+866�,+4�6<?48+<6�0>268�E,38+<6�4.4�+2<�/3,4?,<8�>./>�6;>227H�



�����������	

��
������	����	���	��������	�	�����	�����
�	�
	�������	��������������
�������������������������������������������
�����������������������������������	���	��
�����	������������� ���!"#���$�%#&���'(���	�������)���������	��������(������������(������	���*������	��������������	��������+��	��������������������	�����
�	�
	�����������	��,�����-����	�	��
��������
���������������������	��������������������.
��)������������������������������

������	�����������������.
��)���������(�������������
�������������	������%/� '��'�01'�/1%/%������������2�
	����	�+3�456�7589:��1�� ;%/�/1�%��/%��/�<�=��!<>�������	��	����
�����������2�
	����	����������������(�����
�	

�������	������	����������������������������*
	���	����	�	��(�������������������������������-���	����	�
��	�������������������	��
���
���(������?�������������*
��������������	�����1�/#1�@1A��1�/B�1%�	���������
���������*������C��	�
����������,�����+����D�	����	������2�
	����	���	

�������������

�E=FGG�H��1�� ;%/�/1�B '1�I��'B�/1%���	����

�����*��?��������������������������J(JKK�2�
	����	�����������*��LKLM+�������������*
��������������������-������	������/��H�� /�� ��""1%%�/��/#1�%1�1"/�N1�OB&��"�� %/�/B/�� +P������������
���	��
������	�	���/#1�<��QRG�H����� �/��1 �����SGG��1T1���B/;��;%/�/1�%/B'1 /%(���������������	������������	����	�	��(������)����������������
����*������2�
	����	�����	�����+�D�����������������
(�����2�
	����	��U�����D�	����	����������	���?���������������	���	�������������������������

�����&A�V=GGG�%/B'1 /%������������	���������	�����������������������LK(KKK�������*��LKLW+�X�	
������*���������
���
�	

��,�����-������	�������	������������������	�����������D2�����2UD������*��WY�����	�����-��*������������������������������2UD-���1"1 /��1N1��/�� �������������)��	������
����������������������������������������	����������+�



���������	
���������������������
����
�������������������������������
�����
�������
� ���!
�"
�����#$%�&'(()%�*)+,,�-.$/)+0,$'1�',�+),/�,%2�2/�3%2�+�10%4'/5,)6�10/7',%(�899:�7'))'/;�2$',�<+))=�>$'.$�,$/5)(�;%27/,2�';?,2+2%�@*�+;(�*-@�5;(%030+(5+2%�,25(%;2,�ABCBDEF�GHIJDBJ�KLDB�JLFFEDA�2/>+0(�2$%'0�%(5.+2'/;�2$',<+))M�#$%�(%+)�,/�<+0�+),/�%;,50%,�NOPO�QRFFRLI�RI�ESSLDJEQFB�ATHJBIT�GLHARIU�UDEITA�',�/;�2$%�>+6�V�%;/53$�</0�+2)%+,2�WW=XXX�Y%(,M�#$%�@*=�*-@�+;(�./775;'26�./))%3%,�>%0%�3/';3�2/�0%.%'4%�,2+2%�<5;(';3�('0%.2)6=�Y52�>'));/>�Y%�%Z1%.2%(�2/�',,5%�Y/;(,�2$+2�2$%�,2+2%�>'))�1+6�/<<M�#$%�<5;(';3�,>'2.$�,$/5)(;[2�,)/>�(/>;�.+715,./;,205.2'/;=�+;�+;+)6,2�+2�\%>,/7[,�]%1+027%;2�/<�̂';+;.%�2/)(�*+)&+22%0,M�'̂;+))6=�2$%�2$0%%�,6,2%7,�>'))�3+';�+..%,,�2$',�6%+0�2/�+;/2$%0�89XX�7'))'/;�';�_BDL̀RITBDBAT�FLEIA�2/�Y5')(,25(%;2�+;(�,2+<<�$/5,';3�V�1+02�/<�+�0%4',%(�1)+;�2/�5)2'7+2%)6�0%.%'4%�8WM:�Y'))'/;�';�,2+2%�)/+;,�Y6�9X9a=,$/02�/<�2$%�/0'3';+)�8WMa�Y'))'/;�Y6�9X9b?9c�10/7',%(�)+,2�6%+0M�d�efghifj�kflmhnopl



����������	
�����������	������������������������������������������������������ �!�������! ����"��� ���������� �����������#���$$!���%���&&��� �'�&&��(������  !��)��� #�'�����'�&&������!*�$����$���%���� �%����"�����)!��������&���+���������(�����, �*�����%*�-�.����������/�0�����1�/��2�/�.�����/�0�3����/�����3�����������4�25678�/������/9�:������&��& �����&!�� ���'���*���������;!���$��� ��)�!��<�&=�� ������������������*��$����$������&&�)�������)��'������!��%�������� ���������><#�<?>#�������$$!���%���&&������$��� ������ �'��� ���� �!���� �!*���������)������ 9�:�����;!���$��� ���$��������������������$�����������&���(���$������ �*!��/���/������/���1��
�4�	������/�����@��4�A������/BC�DEFG�HIJKLGFMN����/�O������@����//��//:���*��*� ���)!������& ���&&����� ��!�������������������� ����, �$� ��*��  ����*��)&�$ �"��� �$�  �(���$�&�  ��  ���� � 9����*�!� �PQ�)�&&�����������!�����(��������� ����, �R�$�&�  �R�! ���#�S  � ���������T��(�������*�����$#�'�������&� ��!��$���%�&���&��������& �����! ��������! ���#��!��������������$*$��� #�$������%� ��&��� �����$���9�:�� �$��U �����������%�����������'�����*�����$�'�!&�������(��PQ�)�&&�������$����� �����)!����9�<�&&����(�&%#���� ������� ��������������4�	�VWX�A����������@��/��������@����//��//� ���������YZQ[\Q]��� ��&�%���#�����������������̂��� &���(��S��&% �, �_�����9!̀����� �%���, ����!���� � !�������� �**�������$�&�  ���(����� �����&���&���(���$����&����� �'���'�����$�������$�����a�' �$���$��� �������9�



���������	
������
�������������
������������	���	�����������������������������������������
���� 
���!"��
�#���$
�%
�����&$
�����������
�'()*�+,�-.)(/+)-0�1213451�6,*76.-0�8-.(0-,).3�9+:(;78,(+�(.�<=>?�@=�A?BCDE�=A?F@<GCH�=I�@<?�J=KA@CELM?A@GC?�<=>?D?MM�N=NKDB@G=AO�P,0�:7Q+:�:-+0-8.�+,0�+Q)(R(.).�.+S�T-U.7/V.�Q688-,)�+WW87+Q*�X�*+,0(,Y�76)7,-Z)(/-�Y8+,).�-R-8S�S-+8�(,.)-+0�7;�Y6+8+,)--0�7,Y7(,Y�;6,0(,Y�X�(.�*+/W-8(,Y�)*-(8�-;;78).�)7�/+[-�+�0-,)(,�)*-�W87\:-/O�]*-�̂-+Y6-�7;�9+:(;78,(+�9()(-.3�U*(Q*�BM_?H�I=C�B�̀KBCBA@??H�ab�cGDDG=A�B�E?BC3�-+8:(-8�)*(./7,)*�.+(0�()V.�d(,Q8-0(\:S�0(.+WW7(,)-0e�(,�)*-�\60Y-)V.�:+Q[�7;�7,Y7(,Y�;6,0(,YO�f�ghijkh�lmnohppq?r�>=A?E�I=C�H=rA�NBE>?A@Ms,�)*-�;(,+:�*768.�7;�,-Y7)(+)(7,.3�+�;-U�\(YZ)(Q[-)�.W-,0(,Y�W87Y8+/.�7,�*76.(,Y�U-8-�.+R-0�;87/�)*-Q*7WW(,Y�\:7Q[O�



���������	�
��������	���������������
������
����	�������������������������������������
�
����
���������������� !�"��##$#"��%!��&�'&� (�)	��*����������+,���-�.���/��0������-���
����������1�
��22����
��	�

����������
�	�������������
���������3455�-�����������������(�6��������7��
�-8
�����������1������
���	����������������������������	�����	���3955�-������(�)	����������������
����
����
�3:5�-����������	�������������������-
�;��������	����	�-������
����
���������<=$>�$�'�#!%����&��=�$"#���������	�������?$&#"@"$ !�A� !<=�!&#(�/����	����������B&!#����$>>�<!�'!""$�'�CDEF� $>>$�������������������������G����
���������������
�������������������	��������
�����������������������
�7��
�-����������������
��(6��������
�����8��1�
��������
�������-����(�H�-���-�
��	��8����
������-����;���������	�
���
��������
����;�������(*�
����������I�)	����������H�����/�����
�������������������������-������	�������������(J�
����
���������	��K�����*���������������������L�-�����
��
���	
����-�����
��������
���
��������-��������
�����������������
����������������
�����-���
������������
���������������������������
�����������������
����������������-���
(�)	��M��
���������

����	��#"&!� >$�$�'�<$>>#�>�#"��!�&������	�������
����������������������J����2(K��J����95���	��H�����/���*����*��������L�-�����-�����	���N55�������
����
�������������������������������
���
�������
�O���������������-���(�)	�����
�������	����1������
����
�����	��
�����������
���	��P��
�������	��	����	�����������
���
���
���=>���%"=�>>���>>���?�&�!��='A��!��A�=#$�'�"�� �Q!�=��?�&�"A!!R! �"!����&%!>#S)	����
�����������H�����/�����

�����
�����
��������
����-�����	��
�����
�����	�
�-���	������������
�������������(�6������������	��������
���������������������	��
�-��-���������*���������8
������O-��������
�����
��������
�����	��������	�-(�*��������	��%$"���?�T��"��U���A���&�&����"$@>���A�>!�� !�� !�"I�)	������������
���

�
��	�������������L�-��
�����--�����������������-���
�O��������������
��������	�
����-�������������������
�O�����������-�����������������������
�����	��������
����������������������1�
���
�-��	�	��
�����������-���(V�WXY�Z[\]̂_̀a[X\



����������	
����������	������	�����������	������	��	�
����
�����������������������	�������������������������������� 	�!	�����

"�#$%�&'()�*+,�-'&$./()012�34567�89:;2<�:267�=>?@4:2A�B?>2�:2<647�?5�1?C�<12�A<6<2�C477�9A2�>2@2592�3>?B�4<A�D656;2:�E6>2F>;654G6<4?5�<6HI�72@42:�?5�D2:4JE67�65:�K?BB2>K467�1267<1�45A9>65K2�=765A�65:�<16<�127=A�<12�A<6<2�>2K24@2B6<K145;�32:2>67�:?776>AL�MN267<1�=765A�6;>22�<?�<14A�<6H�82K69A2�<12O�6>2�2@25<9677O�=64:�86KPLQ�014A�DEF�<6H�4A�A2<�<?�;252>6<2�RSTLU�84774?5�3?>�<12�A<6<2�3>?B�V=>47�WXWY�<1>?9;1�<12�25:�?3�WXWZL�V8?9<RSS�84774?5�?3�<16<�C477�82�9A2:�45�=6><�<?�8??A<�=6O�3?>�D2:4JE67�=>?@4:2>AI�C1?�16@2�7?5;�K>4<4K4G2:�<12�A<6<23?>�4<A�7?C�>24B89>A2B25<�>6<2A�<16<�<12O�A6O�74B4<A�<12�59B82>�?3�7?CJ45K?B2�=2?=72�<12O�K65�A2>@2L�012�>2A<C477�82�9A2:�<?�127=�K?@2>�A1?><3677A�45�<12�9=K?B45;�65:�39<9>2�A<6<2�89:;2<AL�[5�<12�WXWYJWU�89:;2<I�A=2K434K677OI�<12�A<6<2�C477�>2K24@2�RULU�84774?5�3>?B�<12�DEF�<6HI�?3�C14K1�RYLU�84774?5C477�;?�<?�<12�\252>67�]95:L�012�>2B64545;�RS�84774?5�C477�;?�<?C6>:̂_̀a,'(b$̀%�,'$c#d,b'c'̀eb�*+,�-'&$./()�f,+g$&',b�45�=>4B6>O�K6>2I�B6<2>54<O�K6>2�65:�5?5JA=2K467<OB25<67�1267<1�A<6><45;�45�WXWUL�014A�;>?9=�C477�A22�6�52C�D2:4JE67�>24B89>A2B25<�37??>�h�ijLkl�?3�C16<D2:4K6>2I�<12�32:2>67�1267<1�45A9>65K2�=>?;>6B�3?>�A254?>A�65:�=2?=72�C4<1�:4A68474<42AI�=6OA�3?>�<12�A6B2A2>@4K2AL�[5�D2:4JE67I�A?B2�?3�<12A2�A2>@4K2A�6>2�K9>>25<7O�>24B89>A2:�6<�ZXl�?3�C16<�D2:4K6>2�=6OAmRkX�B4774?5�<?�127=�>9>67�1?A=4<67A�K?B2�45<?�K?B=7465K2�C4<1�<12�be(e'nb�b'$bc$a�c(̀&(e'I�:92�45�WXYXm�RSkX�B4774?5�<?�<12�&$be,'bb'&�o+bf$e()�)+(̀�f,+%,(c�3?>�=9874K�65:�5?5=>?34<�1?A=4<67A�45�34565K467<>?9872I�8>45;45;�<12�<?<67�6@6476872�3?>�<16<�=9>=?A2�<?�RYXX�B4774?5m�Rjk�B4774?5�<?�<12�p54@2>A4<O�?3�E6743?>546�<?�2H=65:�4<A�;>6:96<2�B2:4K67�2:9K6<4?5�=>?;>6BI�45�65�6<<2B=<<?�=>?:9K2�B?>2�=1OA4K465AL�012�52C7O�B45<2:�:267�67A?�:4>2K<A�<12�A<6<2�<?45K>26A2�>24B89>A2B25<�3?>�?<12>�<O=2A�?3�D2:4JE67=>?@4:2>A�65:�A2>@4K2A�45�39<9>2�89:;2<AL�VB?5;=>?@4:2>A�65:�A2>@4K2A�<?�82�45K79:2:̂�A=2K4674A<AIC?B25�1267<1�=>?@4:2>AI�1?A=4<67�2B2>;25KOA2>@4K2AI�;>?95:�2B2>;25KO�<>65A=?><�A2>@4K2AI�65:8216@4?>67�1267<1�45�7?5;J<2>B�K6>2�A2<<45;AL�012:267�67A?�36A<�<>6KPA�1?C�q94KP7O�<12A2�?<12>=>?@4:2>A�K65�A22�<124>�=6OB25<�8??A<A�h�5?C�634@2JO26>�<4B27452L�r2CA?BsA�89:;2<�45�D6O=>?=?A2:�65�iJ<?JSXJO26>�=2>4?:L�



��������	
������	�����������������������	�������������
����������	��	����������	����������	����
���������������������	����������
������������������� ��!�������������������������"���#�����������	����
�"���#������������	�$�����	#��
#������������������#���������
��

��	���� �%�����	$��������������������#�
�������	��
��������$������������� �&�'()�*+�,-)..)/�01234567�892�12�:1;676<�:=>9?1729=@�������	������
�������	
������	�������������#�	�����
��������������#�������������������������$������������������	
�������	��������A���	����	�	�����	�512BC3�1?�D7633476��	�$������$	��
���������
��������	� ��
���������
����$�E	���	�$���
�����F���$���G����	#���
���#���
����	�������51;6<�5176�BC=2�HIII�59>>912�?715�BC6�76367;6���������J�	���K��
���
��	�����	������#��	���	��
�������	����������������������
��������������$�������LM���������������	����A��A���E������������	�������� ���NONO��F���$��	����
���
����$�E	�����	��
�������	�P������Q������#����������	�����������������������	��������������
�������A���	�����	��	�$���	����������	
���	��������	
�������	���������������	���������������	
������	�������	E����� �%�������#���	����$�	������LROO�$��������������#������������#������
�������	���������� %��
��������#�	����	���������������#�$��#�����
�	���#������������A���	����	�	�����
������
������J�	���K��
 ����
������	�����LSOO�$������������������J�	���K��
���������

	�������������LRM T�����������	����������������$$����LUN T�$�������������	��������������	������������	�����Q��#�	���
�LMST�$�������������# �%��LSOO�$��������������	���
�����������#�	�NONTANS ��%��������������������������
�������������
����$����������������������Q��#�	������
���������������
�	���	���������#���
������������
�����#����@�����������������	��������������������#������	����������������NOMV %��
����	���
��������$��#������$�����

����������	����	�Q�$���#�VTO�OOO��	�������������	
������	���������$�
A��	�������������������
 &�W.XYZ[(�\])(̂



���������	��
�	����	�
�����	�
	����
	������������������	���������	����	��	 ����	!������"	#$�	�����	�%�&	����	��	������'	(%� %	����	���)	�%�	 ��������$!*��)��+,%��	-$������	%��	���*���)	�.��	��� �	�	)� �����*	������	!�!$������	��)	/�.0	1�����	��	#�*��	�%$����*	)���!������	�%���	&����	�*�0	2���	 ���$���	�����&	���	��	�%�	�����	#� �$��	��	�%�	�����3�	��*%�����*	#$)*��	��)�����4������*	������	�$�#���05����#�&	6$)*��	���������	�%���!�����	78��	9�
:"	�	;��	<��� �� �	=��� ���"	���)	��	<�#�$��&	�%��	�8�>���?��
��	@������
�	�?	>��������
�	�
A	B�8�C��������
	%��	#���	$�������*	��	�$��	�.��	D�%�	����	#��� �����������E	�#�$�	!�����	��������$ �$��	���)�0	F�	%�	%�)	�%��"	,��*	���)"	1�����	��)	��*��������	 �$�)	)��� �	�%�	 ���$��	��	�%�	�� �������	���%	�%�	�����G!����.�	���)�	���%��	�%��	�!��)	%��.��&	��	��!����	��	!������	#�$�)	���	�%$�)����01��"	��*��������	���	��&��*	��	��� �	�������	����	�%�	 ���� �����	)�!�������	��	�	!$#�� 	�����&	�!��)��*	#������� %�)	��	�%�	#$)*��0	,%�	���*$�*�	��	�%�	#���	��-$����	�%�	�*�� &	��	������	%�$���*	#&	��)41�.��#��	��)����	��	�%��	���	����	#&	!��.�)��*	���	���%�)���*&	��)	�%�	$�)���&��*	)���0	,%�	#$)*��	#���	)� �����	�%�	H�*�����$��3�	������	��	 ����	����	!������"	#$�	��	)���	���	 �����	��	�	�$�#��0,%�	H�*������.�	5���&��3�	I��� �	��!����)	�������	�%��	&���	�%��	�%�	�����	 ��	�����	
�
�	����
�	�
A	��:8�J��A�"	�� �$)��*	�%�	��$�	�� �������	�����)&	��##�)	���	 ���$��	#&	1�����0	,%�	 ���	��	�!������*	!������	.�����	#&	������$����"	#$�	�8�	�������	�?	�	����
	�
	9���&	����	&���	��	!��K� ��)��	��.�	�%�	�����	�#�$�	LMNO	�������	�	&���0	=���������*	��������$ �$��	���)�	 ��	%��!	�%�	�����	�.��)	�!��)��*	����&	��	!������	��	��	���*��	���)�"	�����%�	LPM	�������	�%�	�����	�!���	��	�	%����%	 ���	�� ����&	��	�	����������	���&	!�����	��	QOQM	K$��	����%�	#������%�	�����	����$� �)	���	 ���$��0	,%�	����������	!�����	�����	�����*	�%���	���*���	��!��&���	%�.�	����)	���	�� �� �	��	���!	�%�	!������	�!��0	F�;$���.����"	�%�	 ��&	�$�)	�%�	�����	��	!��.���	�%�	 ���$��	��	�%�	>���?��
��	>��������
��	>�
���R		,%�	 ��&$��������&	����	�%��	#�����0	,%�	 ��&	��	6�&�%�	 %���	�	)��������	�� �"	��$� %��*	�	�C���	�������
�	C���S	�%�&	%�!�	����	���.�	���	�%� ���$��	��	�%$ ������	T����&	;����	U�����0	



���������	
�
�������������������������������� �!"�!�#"$�%��&'%#(�!'��#'��$��)(�#�*%#"�(����%*�*)+%&,�(!#"'&(�#��",&�'�'(&%%�!��%&"��-!�.�*%)..�(&"�!&$�!'�&*�$)!&"��(���*#"$�.&,/�0�&%��1�2'�.3'�4#5�+)$��(�*!�*�'#%�-#&%�$�(��*!� &$��#"5�#''&'(#",��-�!���������6������������6���7����������89�#"$�$�%#5�$�:;�+&%%&�"�&"�,�"'(!),(&�"�*!�<�,('8�(���=��&'%#()!�!�<�,(�$�(�#(�.� ��#"$��������>�����>>�������?@A@�������� �!�(���"�B(�(�!���5�#!'�-!�.�(���'(#(�3'�,#*C#"$C(!#$��-)"$'/�����$�#%�&",%)$�'�#�(�(#%��-�:D/E�+&%%&�"�� �!�-�)!�5�#!'�F�!�'(�!&"��(���-)%%�:G�+&%%&�"�-�!�,�"'(!),(&�"�#"$#$$&"��(���:E/E�+&%%&�"�-!�.�,#*C#"$C(!#$��F�2&(��,�.*%�(��-%�B&+&%&(5�-�!�#��",&�'�(��)'��(���.�"�5�-�!�*�!#(&�"'�#'�2�%%�#'�,�"'(!),(&�"8�')+<�,(�(��#,,�)"(#+&%&(5�.�#')!�'�#"$�'(#(��� �!'&��(/�

H�IJK�HLMJ�NJOPQ�RLJSTPU�ULJPS�VJPUT�PS�TUJUPWS�WS�XYZK�[\�]̂]]_�̀aWUW�bK�cPdaJMZ�eW�fJP�gMM\�hPOJ�ihH�jPJ�NMYUMLT



��������	
����
	�	����������	��	������
��
��	������	�����������	�	������������������������������	�	������
��
�	�	�����	�
����������� !!�"#$%$&��������'
�������(�)��
�	�����������	�	�)��	���*��������	��+	������
�	��������������	��	�����������	
���	���������)���	�����
�����������)�������
�	������)�
���)��	�	������������������	���,�	�	��	�)������������	�	
���	���������	�
�����	�����+	��������
��*�������)��	�����������
�,���-
��	
���	����������.����
�����������/�������������	�������,���-
������)���
�	����0��	��
��$%1!$�2#33�456����������������
����	������������,���-
����
�������
���������
����78�9:��*��	�����������������	�78;:)�����������������)�	�������������������
�<��
���	�����������
�)���	���������

��	��
�����������������8:=����������	���
���)�
���)��	��*���������������������������	�������	
���	���������	�)��	���
����>�
�������������)���
���?*��	������	���������	���������������!$@$�A31B$&�����������(�)��
�	��
�)�C
�����������������
	��
�����	)��	����,���-
���	
���	���	���)�
�����
���	�����������D��E$FG H�31!$&�I&1JJ$K�����	�	���79�8������������	�-�)����L���������������
�M1H$G�A1331JN$&����O��������	���������	��	�������	������)��������	��������	P��O�����
�����)��������)�������	�
Q�
������?��
)�
�����������R�������	
���	�D��
����		������������	���������������	�	�)��	�S�TUVWWU�XUVUYZ�I  G!�[ &�\13]&$GN�.����������)��0�
���������	������
��
�)�������������������������K$H1%K�[ &�1GG#G!1%�$�1!�[  KI1%̂G�#G�&#G#%J��*���_�����	�
�������������������������7̀9�)���������
�	���O�����
����a�	
�	����b����	����
��
�)���������������
	������	����	���	�	���O��'
����
��
�)�Icd�N$13!Nd�[  K�[& H�[1&H$&GeH1&̂$!G��*�����
��)��	���	��	�������
��
��
��
���	��	��������������������������	���_�����	�
���������	�)���
7f�f�)�������������0	�)��)�������
���\13]&$GN�[&c#!�1%K�@$J$!1I3$�g#3 !�g& J&1H������7̀�)�������	���+	������������
���������	�
��
��
�)��



���������	
�����
������
�������
������
��������
�
����
��
���
���������	
�	��
����
����������
��	���
��
��������
	�
����
��
���� !�	�	
��
"����
#��
$	�
����������
�	�����
�	��������
%���	�&'()*+,),
-./0,)1
2+*
3(/*42./
.5
',/6*2
',24+1
7,(3
7+*87
2+/(99*3
2+*
0.)*:
5./
2+*
;/.</,0
(7
()
2+*=>3<*21
,)3
7,(3
(2
?(99
6**;
(2
<.()<
2+/.><+
@A@B
,)3
?(99
,97.
=/()<
()
5*3*/,9
3.99,/7CD+*
3*,9
,97.
()49>3*7
EFGH1AAA
2.
72,/2
9,>)4+()<
,
2*72
;/.</,0
2.
()4/*,7*
2+*
0.)2+9:
0()(0>0
I,9-/*7+=*)*5(2
5/.0
E@J
2.
EHAC
K;*)3()<
5./
2+,2
;/.</,0
?.>93
/(7*
2.
EGH
0(99(.)
()
@A@LM@HC
D+,287
,
5,/
4/:1+.?*N*/1
5/.0
2+*
./(<(),9
;/.;.7,9
5./
,
72,2*?(3*
;/.</,0
4.72()<
EFH
0(99(.)1
./
*N*)
,
79(00*3M3.?)EJA
0(99(.)
N*/7(.)
2+*
O*<(79,2>/*
;,77*3CP
QRS
TUVWS



�����������	
�����
�������
�����������������
���������
������
���
��������������������������������� ������!��"����������

#$%&'�()*+%,�%'-.&/01�2&3�4567&�+-$&%0�'*8&+�9:;<�=>?@A�BC;>�D=CEFG<�EGH>:=AI;E�=�IJ<�F:GC;�KA=>?G>G<I�@<�?:;�H;?�@L�=�9;H?;A<�M@NG;O�PGCCG<I�?:;>G<;M=?@IA=K:;A�=<E�F@J<EG<I�?:;�EGA;>?@AO�G?�KA@MK?;E�QJ;H?G@<H�CGP;�RS@F�>@JCE�?:GH�:=KK;<TU�=<E�R9:VF@JCE�=�IJ<�>=K=WC;�@L�PGCCG<I�K;@KC;�;<E�JK�@<�=�M@NG;�H;?TUX<�?:;�F=P;�@L�?:;�G<>GE;<?O�?:;�Y;IGHC=?JA;�>@<HGE;A;E�?F@�WGCCH�G<�Z[ZZ�=GM;E�=?�IJ<�H=L;?V�@<�M@NG;�H;?HOWJ?�2&7%\&'�5$�%\&4�]-++&/O�F:G>:�C=FM=P;AH�=??AGWJ?;E�?@�=�C=>P�@L�>@<H;<HJH�FG?:G<�S@CCVF@@E�=W@J?�F:=??@�E@̂� DJ?�?:GH�V;=AO�H@M;�H=L;?V�M;=HJA;H�=A;�?J>P;E�G<?@?:;�WJEI;?�NG=�=�?=_�>A;EG?�L@A�M@NG;�H?JEG@Ĥ�̀G<>;Z[[aO�b=CGL@A<G=�:=H�:=E�=�?=_�>A;EG?�HK;>GLG>=CCV�L@A?:;�LGCM�G<EJH?AVO�FG?:�?:;�I@=C�@L�>@J<?;AG<I�@?:;AH?=?;Hc�;LL@A?H�?@�CJA;�KA@EJ>?G@<H�d�=<E�=CC�?:;�e@WH=<E�HK;<EG<I�?:=?�>@M;�FG?:�?:;M�d�=F=V�LA@MS@CCVF@@Ê�X<�?:GH�V;=AcH�WJEI;?�=IA;;M;<?O�%\-%�%-f�g'&/7%�3-+'&6-4]&/̂�̀?=A?G<I�G<�Z[ZhO�=<V�LGCM�G<EJH?AV;MKC@V;A�?:=?�A;>;GN;H�?:;�>A;EG?�F@JCE�=CH@�:=N;�?@:GA;�@A�=HHGI<�=�H=L;?V�=ENGH@A�?@�K;AL@AM�=�AGHP=HH;HHM;<?�=<E�W;�KA;H;<?�EJAG<I�KA@EJ>?G@<̂BM@<I�@?:;A�KA@NGHG@<HO�KA@EJ>?G@<H�F@JCE�:=N;�?@>@<EJ>?�E=GCV�H=L;?V�M;;?G<IH�=<E�?:@H;�FG?:LGA;=AMH�F@JCE�<;;E�?@�:=N;�=�KA@K�M=H?;A�@A�=AM@A;A�FG?:�=�K;AMG?�LA@M�?:;�b=CGL@A<G=�i;K=A?M;<?�@LjJH?G>;̂k:;�?=_�>A;EG?�F@JCE�=CH@�W;�A;LJ<E=WC;�H?=A?G<I�G<�Z[ZhO�M;=<G<I�LGCM�H?JEG@H�?:=?�A;>;GN;�=�C=AI;�>A;EG?�WJ?:=N;�=�HM=CC�?=_�WGCC�FGCC�W;�=WC;�?@�I;?�>=H:�W=>P̂�k:=?cH�=�>:=<I;�?:;�LGCM�G<EJH?AV�\-+�l&&2�85ll072.�$5'̂k:;�>A;EG?�F@JCE�:=N;�G<>;<?GN;H�=<E�A;QJGA;M;<?H�=GM;E�=?�G<>A;=HG<I�EGN;AHG?V�G<�?:;�LGCM�G<EJH?AVF@APL@A>;̂�B�CG??C;�8&++�%\-2�\-8$�5$�-88�$784�72/*+%'0�m5l+�72�%\&�g5*2%'0�-'&�85g-%&/�72�-2/�-'5*2/�n5+�#2.&8&+O=>>@AEG<I�?@�H?=?;�=<=CVH?HO�=�HCGI:?�E;>CG<;�LA@M�=�E;>=E;�=I@̂o�pqrst�ptuvt�


	Item 1.0___7.10.23 Commission Meeting AGENDA (rf approved)
	Item 3.0___2023.06-12 Commission Meeting MINUTES DRAFT(rf approved_7.5.23)
	Monday, June 12, 2023, 6:00 pm
	1.0 Call to Order and Roll Call
	2.0 Public Comment
	No comment from the public.
	3.0 Approve the Minutes from the April 17, 2023 Commission Meeting.
	5.0 CONSIDER for discussion any items removed from the Consent Calendar. Before discussing items 4.2.2 and 4.2.12 the Chair asked for recusal statements to be read.
	4.2.2 APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Executive Director, or her designee, to execute a contract with Counseling Options & Parent Education Support Center Inc. to provide Triple P classes to parents with children ages birth to 5 years old utilizing certifie...

	The chair opened the discussion of item 4.2.12.
	6.0 Public Hearing on the First 5 Contra Costa Strategic Plan for FY23/24 to FY25/26 and Long-Term Fiscal Plan
	7.0 Receive staff presentation of the refreshed First 5 Contra Costa website.
	8.0    Communications
	9.0 Commissioner F.Y.I. Updates

	Item 4.2___Program Updates_June_2023_v2_packet ready
	Family Support
	Family Economic Security Partnership
	Early Intervention
	Early Childhood Education
	Contra Costa Children’s Leadership Council

	Item 9.0___ED Report - July 10 Commission Meeting
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4

	Item 10.1__ECPIC Letter-Concerns..Proposal to Adjust Mental Health Svcs Act (MHSA)
	Item 10.2__Article-California budget deal_ What you need to know
	Item 4.1___4.17.23_Executive Committee Meeting Minutes DRAFT (rf approved)_m edits 6.8.23 Final.pdf
	                                                                      Monday, April 17, 2023 at 5:00 PM
	                                                 4005 Port Chicago Highway, Suite 120, Concord, CA 94520
	Closed Session 
	The Chair asked the staff present to exit the room and started closed session at 5:10pm. 
	Chair Jones ended the closed session at 5:50pm and called staff to return to the room to resume open session. 
	Public Comment
	Approve the minutes of the Executive Committee meeting of February 13, 2023.
	Matt Regan made a motion seconded by Marilyn Lucey.
	Roll-call Vote: 
	John Jones – Yes
	Dr. Rocio Hernandez – Yes
	Matt Regan – Yes 
	Minutes Approved 
	CONSIDER accepting the report on significant program, financial or contracts matters, and on any personnel matters relating to Commission staff.
	Commissioner Regan made a motion seconded by Commissioner Dr. Hernandez. 
	Roll-call Vote: 
	John Jones – Yes
	Dr. Rocio Hernandez – Yes
	Matt Regan – Yes 
	Adjourn
	Meeting Adjourned at 6:01 p.m. 






